
Town of Belgrade 
Board of Selectpersons 

June 15, 2021 / 6:30 p.m. 
 

This meeting will be conducted online at 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984 

A G E N D A 
 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
Open Meeting 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
2. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of June 8, 2021, Selectboard minutes. 
B. Discussion and consideration of Parks & Recreation job descriptions. 

1. Custodian. 
2. Camp counselor. 

C. Discussion and consideration of Request for Proposals for snow-plowing, 
sanding and ice control. 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Discussion and consideration of 2021 tax commitment.  
B. Update on veterans memorial improvements. 
C. Consideration of non-resident’s application to purchase burial plots. 
D. Consideration of awarding contract for fuel, propane and off-road diesel. 
D. Consideration of awarding contract for electrical repair/maintenance and 

propane generator repair/maintenance. 
E. WARRANT 
F. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


 

Town of Belgrade 
Board of Selectpersons 

June 8, 2021 / 6:30 p.m. 
 

This meeting was conducted online via Zoom and can be watched at 
https://youtu.be/WVaE4_5XUks 

M I N U T E S 
 
Selectboard members present: Melanie Jewell, Ernst Merckens, Barbara Allen, Dan 
Newman, Rick Damren  

In attendance: Town Manager Anthony Wilson, Jack Sutton, Dick Bourne, Code 
Enforcement Officer Gary Fuller, Kate Damren, Scott Damren, Assessor Rob Duplisea, 
Recreation Director Lily Schubert, Facilities Maintenance Director Chris Dutill, Joan 
King.  

Mr. Damren called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Ms. Allen led the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  

1. PUBLIC COMMENT. There was no public comment.  
2. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of May 18, 2021, Selectboard minutes. Ms. Allen moved approval. Mr. 
Merckens seconded. Motion approved 3-0, with Ms. Jewell and Mr. Newman 
absent. 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Board appointments: 

1. Tom Bennett – Dams Committee (reappointment). Mr. Merckens moved 
approval. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 3-0, with Ms. Jewell and Mr. 
Newman absent. 

2. Phil Sprague – Cemetery Committee (reappointment). Mr. Merckens moved 
approval. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 3-0, with Ms. Jewell and Mr. 
Newman absent. 

B. Discussion and consideration of Parks & Recreation job descriptions. 
1. Custodian. 
2. Camp counselor. 
Ms. Allen suggested minor changes to the custodian job description. Because 
Ms. Jewell and Mr. Newman were absent for the discussion, the Board agreed to 
postpone consideration of the descriptions until its June 15 meeting. 

C. Discussion of local property value trends. Assessor Rob Duplisea explained the 
factors that are reducing the homestead exemption from $25,000 to $23,000 
under the state’s formulas. That change is driven by the rising value of properties 
sold in recent years. Mr. Wilson said the change may alarm taxpayers but will not 
impact them, noting that more taxable value allows the Town to mitigate 

https://youtu.be/WVaE4_5XUks


 
increases in the mil rate. Mr. Duplisea suggested a reassessment may be 
necessary in the next few years to ensure the state does not penalize the Town 
by reducing its tree growth revenue. He said a reassessment would take a year 
and should start immediately after taxes are committed. He estimated the cost at 
upwards of $250,000; Mr. Wilson noted that cost could be funded from the 
undesignated fund. The Board agreed to monitor the situation and re-evaluate 
next summer.  

D. Discussion of how to conduct future Selectboard meetings. The Board 
discussed the possibility of having hybrid meetings that combine an in-person 
forum with opportunities to participate remotely, and the technology that would 
allow that. The Board decided to continue meeting via Zoom until it has clarity on 
open meeting regulations that the Legislature is considering.  

E. Discussion and consideration of Request for Proposals for snow-plowing, 
sanding and ice control. Mr. Merckens moved to strike the passages referring 
to a salt priority loop. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 5-0. The Board 
asked the town manager to explore with Maine Department of Transportation 
adding the plowing of routes 27 and 8/11 as an alternate bid to the RFP. The 
Board will consider the amended RFP on June 15.  

4. WARRANT. Ms. Jewell moved approval of warrant 61 for $573,533.41. Mr. 
Merckens seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

5. TOWN MANAGER REPORT. Marylou Butterfield, board president of the 
Belgrade/Rome Special Needs Food Pantry, detailed a proposal to spruce up the 
interior of the North Belgrade Community Center, including painting, repairing trim 
and replacing the kitchen refrigerator with an upgrade. The Board thanked the pantry 
volunteers for their generosity.  
The town manager relayed a proposal from Town Clerk Mary Vogel to incentivize 
dog registrations with a drawing for a basket of pet goodies, purchased by allowing 
employees to pay $2 per day for the privilege of wearing jeans to work. The Board 
offered its blessing. 

 
Mr. Damren moved to adjourn at 8:10 p.m. Mr. Merckens seconded. Motion approved 5-
0. 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Recreation job descriptions 

The Parks and Recreation Department is seeking to hire a custodian and 
summer camp counselors. As such, Recreation Director Lily Schubert and I 
agreed the timing is right to update job descriptions for those positions. The 
proposed changes are tracked in the attached documents. The suggestions 
suggested by Selectperson Allen at the June 1 meeting are highlighted. 



1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF BELGRADE 
 

CENTER FOR ALL SEASONSPARKS & 

RECREATION CUSTODIAN 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

APPROVED ON 06/1501/2021 



2  

TOWN OF BELGRADE 
CUSTODIAN / MAINTENANCE 

CENTER FOR ALL 
SEASONSPARKS AND 

RECREATION  

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

Nature of Work: 
 
This is Ccustodial and maintenance work, primarily in the “Center for All Seasons”Parks 
and Recreation facilities facility. 

 
The employee is responsible for the general cleaning and minor maintenance of the 
Center for All Seasons (CFAS) facilityand the North Belgrade Community Center, 
along with cleaning the Town Office once weekly. The employee also assists the 
Recreation Director when possiblenecessary. The employee performs a wide variety 
of cleaning and light maintenance throughout the buildings and grounds. Work 
requires the use of tools and  supplies common to standard cleaning tasks and minor 
maintenance work. Work is performed under the general direction of the Recreation 
Director and Facilities Maintenance Director, and is subject to review through 
observation, evaluation reports, and results achieved.. 

 
Assignments are general in nature with a daily written grounds and building inspection 
maintenance report required. 

 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities: 
 

  Assists in the supervision programs as needed, 
 

   Sweeps, mops, scrubs, polishes and vacuums floors., 
 

   Washes walls, counters, tables, windows and woodwork., 
 

 Cleans indoor & outdoor rest rooms and replenishes supplies., 

  Dusts, polishes, arranges and moves furniture & equipment.,  

  Removes rubbish and recycled items/paper., 

   Performs light maintenance, basic carpentry and painting., 
 

   Performs a daily building inspection for damage(s) and safety issues with written 
report to the Recreation Director., 



3  

   Assists Recreation Director in preparation of special events and programs., 

Assists in grounds maintenance in all seasons., 

When requested, assumes responsibility and control of building during times 
when it is rented., 



4  

   Assists in the supervision of programs as needed, 

Maintains a professional relationship with patrons and 

colleagues, 

   Performs other duties as assigned. 
 

Requirements of Work: 
 

   Working knowledge of the methods and supplies used in day-to-day cleaning of 
buildings., 

 

   Ability to understand and carry out oral and written instructions., 

  Ability to work relatively independently without minimal 

supervision and demonstrate industriousness., 

   Ability to take on responsibilities in an office setting, if needed., 

 

   Physically skilled in the use of tools and equipment used in various maintenance 
and repair tasks., 

 

   Must pass background check and must have valid driver’s license., 
 

   Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other 
Rrecreation employees and the general public. 

 

Training and Experience Required: 
 
Must have aH high school diploma or equivalent and experience in commercial cleaning 
areis  preferred. EPast experience in custodial work is a plus. Must be able to deal with 
children and take on responsibilities in an office setting. Knowledge in the use and 
storage of swimming pool chemicals is preferred or is possess a willingness to learn. 
Previous experience working with children and the public is beneficial. 

 

Work Week: 
 
This position is a 25-0 hour work week, Mondays – Fridays, 3:00 to 7:00 p.m.typically 
from early afternoon to early evening or as needed. Must be available, if needed, to 
open and close the CFAS and the NBCC facilities for rentals throughout the entire 
work week and weekends. 

 

Benefits/Pay: 
Benefits will follow “Town of Belgrade /Employment Guidelines” for pPart-tTime 
employees. Pay will follow the pay rate scale as outlined in the Employment Guidelines 



5  

handbook.begin at minimum wage. 
 
Approved by Selectboard on June 8, 2021. 

 

u/files/personnel & others/personnel/JD/custodian/CFAS 2013 
Approved by Select Board at their April 2, 2013 regular scheduled meeting. 



1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF BELGRADE 
 

CAMP COUNSELOR 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

APPROVED ON 06/15/2021 



2  

TOWN OF BELGRADE 

CAMP COUNSELOR 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

Nature of Work: 
 
He/she isCounselors are responsible for assisting with the Camp Golden Pond and/or 
Camp Loon program activities as well as guiding/helping the children adjust and grow 
within the program guidelines. He/sheCounselors complyies with and participates fully in 
the instruction of swimming, arts and crafts, games, various camp activities, and 
education programs. 

 
Essential Duties and Responsibilities: 

 
 Responsible for a group of children, helping each child adjust and grow with other 

children within the program guidelines.  
 Plan and implement daily curriculum for children to follow.  
 Assist with all camp activities and other activities as assigned.  
 Follow all program procedures and guidelines in conjunction with the Camp Golden 

Pond/Camp Loon standard operating procedures. 
 Demonstrate willingness to participate in all areas of Camp Golden Pond/Camp 

Loon programming.  
 Complyies with and participates fully in the instruction of swimming, arts and crafts, 

games, various camp activities, and education programs.  
 Leads by example and directions, expressing importance of a) core values – 

respect, responsibility, caring, and honesty, b) camper safety, and c) enthusiastic 
fulfillment of program objectives.  

 Ability to cCommunicate,  and work with groups participating (age and skill level), 
and provide necessary instruction to children of all ages and skill levels.  

 Abilities to oObserve camper behavior and assess its appropriateness, enforce 
relevant safety regulations and emergency procedures, and apply appropriate 
behavior management techniques.  

 Understands the Camp Golden Pond/Camp Loon commitment to providing a 
healthy and safe environment.  

 Maintains safety, cleanliness, and discipline of children, areas and equipment.  
 Visual and auditory ability to identify and respond to environmental and other 

hazards related to the activity.  
 Ambulatory ability to lead members to/from daily activities throughout the Camp 

Golden Pond/Camp Loon property and the physical ability to participate in activities 
with the campers.  

 Guide any camper with behavior, attitude, or emotional problems, referring any 
serious problems to the Camp Director.  

 Become familiar with safety procedures and help ensure a healthy and safe 
working environment.  

 Perform other duties as assigned by the Camp Director.  



3  

 

Requirements of Work: 
 

 Applicant mMust be at least 15 years of age with some experience significant to 
working with children.  

 Applicant must have eExcellent communicationg skills along with the skills 
necessary to work with groups of children made up of different ages and skill 
levels.  

 Emotional and mental maturity, is mandatory along with training or skills in 
problem- solving.  

 Ability, desire and basic skills to work with children are mandatory.  
 Ability to interact with staff of all levels.  
 Demonstrate iInternal and external customer service skills.  
 Team player.  
 Display role model behavior.  
 Organizational skills.  
 Attention to details.  
 Good communication skills  
 Maintain confidentiality.  
 Ability to work independently with minimal supervision and to meet deadlines  
 Ability to work independently  
 Critical thinking  
 Flexibility  
 Withstand eExposure to the elements (wind, rain, sun, etc.) and high noise levels. 
 High noise levels  
 Working closely with others, especially youth  
 Work with minimal supervision  
 Manual dexterity, including bending, reaching, lifting and leading campers to and 

from activities, and ability to participate in physical activities. 
 Bending, reaching, lifting  
 Ability to participate in physical activities  
 Ability to handle stress and maintain a positive attitude  
 Meet deadlines Visual and auditory ability to identify and respond to environmental 

and other hazards related to the activity.  
 

 
 
Approved by Selectboard on June 151, 2021. 



 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Snowplowing, sanding and ice control RFP 

The attached Request for Proposals is for snowplowing, sanding and ice control. 

The last three-year contract recently expired.  

We have added clearer distinctions of where the plowing ends to the descriptions 

of the Guptill, Gowell, Sahagian, Damren and Stevens roads, and to Lakeshore 

Drive. Those updates are highlighted, as is the updated name of Old Route 8. 

This RFP also contains an alternate bid for the plowing of Routes 27, 8/11 and 

135, as discussed during the June 8 meeting. As of this writing, we do not yet 

have information from Maine Department of Transportation as to how much of 

the cost of that effort the state would fund. 

If approved by the Board, the RFP would be sent to local contractors and posted 

for two weeks on webpages dedicated to RFPs on the Town and Maine 

Municipal Association websites. We would bring the responses to the Board for 

your consideration at the July 20 meeting.  



1 
 

/TOWN OF BELGRADE 
WINTER MAINTENANCE 

(Snow Plowing, Sanding & Ice Control)  
        (Bid Specifications & Bid Form) 

2021-2022 / 2022-2023 / 2023-2024 
 

INVITATION TO BID FOR:  
 

 WINTER MAINTENANCE 
(SNOWPLOWING, SANDING AND ICE CONTROL) 

ON ROADS IN BELGRADE, MAINE 
 

The Town of Belgrade (the “TOWN”) is seeking bid prices to supply services for winter 
maintenance, i.e., snowplowing, sanding and other ice control measures on roads in our 
Town. The initial term of this agreement will be for THREE winter seasons beginning on 
October 15 and ending on May 15 of each contracted year (hereinafter “Winter 
Season”). The three-year contract begins on October 15, 2021, and ends May 15, 2024.  
 
Responses to this Request for Proposals must be received at the Town office in a 
sealed envelope marked: 
  

Winter Maintenance Proposal - Town of Belgrade, Attn: Anthony Wilson,  
990 Augusta Road, Belgrade, Maine 04917 

 
by NO LATER THAN 12:00 noon, July 1, 2021. The Board of Selectpersons will review 
all proposals at its next schedule meeting on July 6, 2021, starting at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Proposal forms and specifications may be obtained at the Town Office at 990 Augusta 
Road, Belgrade, ME 04917 or by calling 207-495-2258. 

 
STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
1. The attached proposal is to be signed by the bidder. It acknowledges the bidder 

has full knowledge of and agrees with the general specifications, conditions and 
requirements of this bid. The conditions set forth in this bid are to be considered 
minimum bid specifications. Any variance or deviation from the specifications, 
terms and conditions, no matter how slight, must be noted on an attachment 
labeled “Variances.” Failure to document such variances or deviations may, at 
the TOWN’S sole discretions, disqualify the proposal from consideration.  

 
2. Incomplete bids or bids received later than the time and date specified in the 

“Invitation to Bid” will not be considered. Withdrawals of bid prices after the bid 
opening will not be considered. Vendor agrees to keep the quoted price for a 
period of at least (30) thirty days for the Town of Belgrade’s Board of 
Selectpersons to review and award a contract to the successful bidder. 

 
3. The bidder shall insert in the attached proposal the price per stated mile.  



2 
 

 
4. The TOWN reserves the right to reject any and all bids, wholly or in part; to waive 

technical defects; and to make awards in the manner deemed to be in the best 
interests of the TOWN. 

 
5. The TOWN reserves the right to inspect any equipment proposed to be used 

during the term of this agreement prior to awarding a contract to a bidder. All 
bidders must submit a list of all vehicles and equipment used for the first year of 
the agreement including the model year, number and description.  
 

6. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the TOWN with proof of PUBLIC LIABILITY 
INSURANCE, naming the Town of Belgrade as additional insured, in the amount 
of not less than Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000) or such other 
amounts as is established by the Maine Tort Claims Act (14 M.R.S.A. section 
8101) as amended from time to time, combined single limit, to protect the 
CONTRACTOR, and any subcontractor performing work covered by this 
Agreement, and the TOWN from claims and damages that may arise from 
operations under this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR will also provide the 
TOWN with proof of workers’ compensation insurance in the amount required by 
Maine law and as necessary. 



3 
 

TOWN OF BELGRADE 
  

WINTER MAINTENANCE RFP INFORMATION 
2021-2022 / 2022-2023 /2023-2024 

 FOR ALL ROADS IN THE TOWN OF BELGRADE  
 
BELGRADE, MAINE KENNEBEC, COUNTY 

    
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Town of Belgrade is hereinafter referred to as the “TOWN”, and the successful bidder is 
hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR.”  In consideration of mutual covenants 
made herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1)  The CONTRACTOR AGREES to remove snow and apply salt or sand/salt to the 
following roads/locations within the Town of Belgrade, Maine: 
 

SOUTH BELGRADE ROADS 
 
ROAD                                   FROM                                     TO                            MILES   
Bartlett Rd.   Route 135   Mount Vernon Line  1.64 
Chandler Rd.   Route 27   Point Road   1.00 
Depot Rd.   Route 27   Route 27   1.25 
Dunn Rd.   West Road   Mount Vernon Line  3.10 
East-West Lane  West Road   End of Pavement &  0.60 
        Turn-around 
Foster Point Road  Route 27   Pinkham Cove Hill  0.40 
Guptill Road   Route 27   227 Guptill Road/end of 
        pavement   1.10 
Hulin Road   Route 27   End of Pavement  0.25 
Knowles Road  Route 135   Sidney Town Line  2.00 
Lakeshore Drive  West Road   55 Lakeshore Dr./ 
        end of pavement  0.30 
Location Road  Wings Mill Road  End of Road   0.62 
Minot Hill Road  Depot Road   Route #135   1.00 
Narrows Road  Route 27   Rome Line   2.16 
Old Route 27   Route 27   Route 27   0.51 
Page (Gowell) Road West Road   29 Gowell Road/end 
        of road   0.14 
Penney Road  Old Route 27   Knowles Road  1.58 
Point Road   Route 27   Camp Runoia  2.09 
Red Oaks Lodge Rd. Hulin Road   Rotary    0.11 
Route 135   Route 8/11   Manchester Line  6.15 
Sahagian Road  Route 27   109 Sahagian Road/ 
        end of town road/ 
        begin of private road 0.44 
School Street  Route 27   Hulin Road   0.15 
West Road   Route 27   Route 135   6.04 
Wings Mills Road  Route 135   Mount Vernon Line  1.42 



4 
 

Mill Stream Drive  Wings Mills Rd.  End of Pavement &  0.60  
Turn-around                      

         TOTAL             34.65  



5 
 

 
 
 NORTH BELGRADE ROADS 
 
ROAD                          FROM                                TO                                     MILES  
 
Damren Road                   Route 8                             End of pavement            0.30 
Grandview Drive               Route 8&11                      Include cul-de-sac    0.50                        
Horse-point Road             Route 8                             End of Pavement  2.75 
Loon Call Drive                 Route 8                             End of Pavement 
              Include cul-de-sac  0.75 
McGrath Pond Road         Route 8                            Oakland Town Line  2.04 
Warren Hill Road               Route 8                            Smithfield Town Line  0.23 
Route 8                              Route 11                          Smithfield Town Line  5.68 
Station Road                      Route 11                           Railroad Tracks               0.42 
Stevens Road                    Horse Point Rd.                End of pavement            0.25 
Taylor Woods Rd.              Route 8                             Route 11   0.70 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

TOTAL          13.62 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Note: There is a total of 48.27 miles of roads under this 
contract.  
 
2) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish adequate and satisfactory motor-driven 
equipment and manpower to efficiently perform winter road maintenance.   
 
3) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish a minimum of the following equipment 
to perform this task:  
 

-  SIX (6) Trucks, including TWO (2) ten-wheeler and FOUR (4) single axle.  All 
trucks should be at least 7 Yard capacity and equipped with plow/Wing/Sander, 

 
-  TWO (2) four-wheel drive trucks (minimum ¾ ton) with a plow and sander, and   

    ONE 4-Wheel Drive Pick-Up with Plow,  
 
-  As needed access to ONE (1) Grader, 
 
- All six trucks used as sand/salt trucks must be capable of holding liquid brine 

solution in at least the correct amount as required by the number of yard of 
sand/salt the truck holds.  

 
-  And ONE (1) front-end loader with a minimum bucket size of one (2 ½) cubic  

 
Six of the full size trucks must be equipped with tanks and correct equipment to be able 
to wet the material as it is leaving the truck. Smaller trucks used on intersection will not 
have to be so equipped. The TOWN will supply the liquid, to the CONTRACTOR, that is 
to be sprayed onto the salt or salt/sand mixture. 



6 
 

4) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to commence road treatment as soon as a storm 
event starts or when a situation develops in which the Municipal Officials, Maine 
Department of Transportation, Belgrade Fire Department Officer or his designee, or 
State Police request operations be initiated in the interest of safety.   
 
5)  The CONTRACTOR AGREES to operate continuously until all roads are 
satisfactorily cleared of snow and slush. 
 
6) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to plow snow to the outside edges of the road 
shoulders and to remove snow beyond the road shoulders at locations designated by 
Municipal Officers for the following reasons: 
 

· to allow proper drainage of the road surface 
· to minimize drifting of snow 
· to provide room for displacement of snow from future storms 

 
NOTE: UNLESS SHOULDERS ARE FROZEN CONTRACTOR WILL HOLD WINGS 
UP SO AS NOT TO DIG OUT SHOULDER MATERIAL  
 
7)  The CONTRACTOR AGREES to apply salt or sand/salt to roads that may, in the 
judgment of Municipal Officials, Maine Department of Transportation Officials, Belgrade 
Fire Department Officer or their designee, State Police, require salt or sand/salt 
because of icing conditions within a reasonable time after the roads have become 
slippery.  Application of salt or sand/salt will be made as frequently as necessary for the 
safety of road users. 
 
8) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish the TOWN with the following: 
 

· photocopies of current registrations for the vehicles to be used carrying out the    
terms of this contract 

· Proof that the contractor and all sub-contractors carry a minimum of insurance 
coverage AS LISTED IN # 6. 

· photocopies of all contracts/agreements with all sub-contractors 
· proof of payments made to all sub-contractors at least seven business days prior 

to the next scheduled Town payment to the contractor 
· Proof that the Contractor has had all the truck sanders calibrated before the 

beginning of each storm season. 
 
9) The CONTRACTOR will be held responsible for the action of any sub-contractors.  
(See #3 under TOWN responsibilities). 
 
10) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to hold the TOWN harmless in the matter of funds 
due sub-contractors resulting from work authorized under the terms of this contract. 
 
11) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to use stockpiles of salt or sand/salt mixture which 
will be stored within the Belgrade Sand/Salt Shed located 1 Carey Way, off the 
Cemetery Road.  
 



7 
 

12) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to fill the sand box, as needed, during the storm 
season.  The sand box is located outside of the Salt & Sand Shed Building at 1 Carey 
Way, off from Cemetery Road. 
 
 
13) The CONTRACTOR AGREES to calibrate his/her equipment annually, at the 
beginning of each plow season to reduce “bounce and scatter” losses and to provide 
the TOWN with documentation of this calibration at the start of each plowing season.  
This requirement is based on a recommendation by the Maine Local Roads Center and 
will be performed by the Maine Local Roads Center (207-624-3270) at no additional 
cost to the CONTRACTOR.  
 
14) Maine Local Roads Center (207-624-3270) will also train the CONTRACTOR how 
to calibrate the amount of liquid to be applied to salt or sand/salt mixture as it is being 
dispensed onto the roadway. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

THE TOWN 
 

1) The TOWN AGREES to pay the CONTRACTOR pursuant to the payment 
schedule, which is part of the Contract Agreement (Attachment “A”), and as 
shown below:  

 
ATTACHMENT “A” 
PAY SCHEDULE 

 
 Payment date % & Amount Year 1 Payment 

date % & Amount Year 2 Payment 
date % & Amount Year 3 

  10/04/21 10.0%  10/03/22 10.0%  10/08/23 10.0% 

  11/08/21 5.0%  11/07/22 5.0%  11/05/23 5.0% 

  12/06/21 5.0%  12/05/22 5.0%  12/03/23 5.0% 

  01/03/22 7.5%  01/09/23 7.5%  01/07/24 7.5% 

  01/17/22 7.5%  01/23/23 7.5%  01/21/24 7.5% 

  02/07/22 10.0%  02/06/23 10.0%  02/04/24 10.0% 

  02/21/22 10.0%  02/20/23 10.0%  02/18/24 10.0% 

  03/07/22 10.0%  03/05/23 10.0%  03/04/24 10.0% 

  03/21/22 10.0%  03/19/23 10.0%  03/21/24 10.0% 

  04/04/22 7.5%  04/09/23 7.5%  04/08/24 7.5% 

  04/18/22 7.5%  04/23/23 7.5%  04/22/24 7.5% 

  05/09/22 10.0%  05/07/23 10.0%  05/06/24 10.0% 
          
          
          

   100.0%   100.0%     100% 

 
 
 
2) The TOWN AGREES to furnish salt or screened and mixed sand and salt to the 
CONTRACTOR. The sand/salt will be mixed at a ratio set by the Select Board by the 
end of May of each contract year. 
 
3) The TOWN AGREES to allow a portion of work in this contract to be sub-contracted.  
The TOWN must approve the use of any sub-contractors.  The CONTRACTOR will be 
held responsible for the action of any sub-contractor.  
 
TOWN AND CONTRACTOR: 
 
Both the TOWN and CONTRACTOR confirm that this agreement will be for THREE 
YEARS.  
 

 



9 
 

   BID FORM 
CONTRACTOR’S INFORMATION 

 SNOW PLOWING, SANDING & ICE CONTROL CONTRACT 
 

Bidder: ________________________         _________________________________ 
                     Company Name           Contact Person 
 
 __________________________          _________________________________ 
     Street Address or P.O. Box      Telephone Number / cell number 
 
 __________________________        __________________________________    
          City, State and Zip         Bidder Tax I.D. # (Employer or Soc. Sec #) 
 
 _____________________________   __________________________________ 
 24 hr. Dispatch Phone Number(s)                        e-mail address 
 

PROPOSAL 
 
CONTRACTOR OFFERS THE FOLLOWING BID FOLLOWING THE ABOVE BID 
SPECIFICATION: 
  
2021-2022 year at $_______________per mile for 48.27 MILES at total bid of:               
 
$ __________________;  
 
2022-2023 year at $_______________per mile for 48.27 MILES at total bid of:  
 
$__________________,  
 
2023-2024 year at $_______________per mile for 48.27 MILES at total bid of:               
 
$__________________;. 
 
Total contract for three years is offered at $_______________________________. 
 
The TOWN reserves the right to take actions to decrease the cost per mile as provided 
for in #1 of The TOWN responsibilities, and providing that all provisions of this contract 
are satisfactorily performed.   
 
 THE CONTRACTOR WILL HOLD THE ABOVE FIGURES FOR THIRTY (30) DAYS 
OR UNTIL CONTRACT IS SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. 
 
THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE TERMINATED upon a 30-day written notification by 
either party between May 1 and August 31 of each contract year and will be 
automatically renewed on September 1 of each contract year and runs through until 
May 15 of the following year; should no notice of termination be executed by either 
party.  



10 
 

ALTERNATE BID 
The Maine Department of Transportation has asked about the Town of Belgrade’s 
interest in plowing portions of Routes 27, 8/11 and 135. As an alternate bid, which may 
or may not be accepted by the Town, bidders should provide pricing for removing snow 
and apply salt or sand/salt to the following roads/locations within the Town of Belgrade: 
 

STATE OF MAINE ROADS 
 
ROAD                                   FROM                                     TO                            MILES   
Route 27   Sidney town line  Route 225 in Rome  12.12 
Route 8/11   Route 27   Water/Church St. in 
        Oakland     8.14 
Route 135   Route 27   Routes 8/11     0.52 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

TOTAL            20.78 
 
 

PROPOSAL 
 
CONTRACTOR OFFERS THE FOLLOWING BID FOLLOWING THE ABOVE BID 
SPECIFICATION: 
  
2021-2022 year at $_______________per mile for 20.78 MILES at total bid of:               
 
$ __________________;  
 
2022-2023 year at $_______________per mile for 20.78 MILES at total bid of:  
 
$__________________,  
 
2023-2024 year at $_______________per mile for 20.78 MILES at total bid of:               
 
$__________________;. 
 
Total contract for three years is offered at $_______________________________. 
 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Tax commitment 

 

Now that Kennebec County has approved its budget and the voters have ratified 
the RSU 18 budget, we can consider committing taxes for 2021. Traditionally, the 
Town has committed taxes in June, but that was delayed until July the past two 
years by the arrival of a new town manager in 2019 and by the pandemic in 
2020. 

Assessor Rob Duplisea will be in our offices on the morning of June 15 to 
calculate this year’s commitment. As soon as those worksheets are completed, I 
will email those to you. He will join us on Zoom to outline your options regarding 
the mil rate and to answer any questions you have.  

















Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Veterans memorial update 

 

Gary Mahler, who has been spearheading the volunteer effort to enlarge and 
improve the veterans memorial in the village, has asked to update you on that 
effort, which recently encountered a complication.  



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Request to purchase burial spaces 

 

We have received two requests from non-residents to purchase burial spaces in 
Pine Grove Cemetery. (See attached letters.) The cemetery’s policy is as follows:  

A non-resident may be assigned a single burial lot in the Town's Cemetery 
providing he/she fulfills one of the following three requirements: 

1. A person must have been born in the community.  
2. A person must have blood relatives who are either living in the community 

or who were buried in the cemetery.  
3. A person must own and have paid property taxes on real property in the 

Town of Belgrade for a period of not less than 20 years.  

Shirley Wyman Garand meets the first two criteria. She writes that she lived in 
Belgrade until the age of 30, attending Belgrade schools throughout her 
schooling and graduating from Belgrade High in 1967. Further, her parents are 
buried in Pine Grove, as is her three brothers. Her sister also owns a plot there. 
She is requesting to buy one plot. 

Robert W. and Karen B. Greig meet the second criteria. They write that they 
have a blood relative, Jean Greig Lahaye, buried in Pine Grove along with her 
husband Alphonso Lahaye. They are asking to buy four plots.  

Prior to assignment of the burial lot, the person or legal representative must first 
submit satisfactory evidence of his/her connection to the community, subject to 
review by the Board of Selectpersons. Upon approval by the Board of 
Selectpersons, the Town Manager will direct the Sexton to assign the cemetery 
lot(s). 

In 2020, voters set the cost for non-residents at $450 per space. 

 







Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Heating oil, propane and diesel RFP 

The Town received two responses to the attached Request for Proposals No. 2 
heating oil, propane and off-road diesel. Of the two, Augusta Fuel Co., the 
current provider, provided the better pricing. The RFP was sent to 10 vendors 
and posted online.  

AFC bid $2.047 per gallon of heating oil, $1.48 per gallon for propane, and $2.50 
per gallon for diesel. The bid for heating oil was lower than Dead River 
Company’s $2.425 and the $2.218 Dead River bid on RSU 18’s business. Dead 
River did not give us a propane bid and bid $2.95 for diesel.  

AFC also offered to extend the pricing to our General Assistance clients and 
emergency fuel fund beneficiaries. The bid was submitted by AFC Sales 
Manager Paul Nadeau, a Belgrade resident.  







 
 

TOWN OF BELGRADE, MAINE 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FUEL, PROPANE & OFF-ROAD DIESEL 

You are invited to submit a proposal for up to 7,500 gallons of #2 fuel, up to 3,500 
gallons of LP fuel, and up to 600 gallons off-road Diesel (winter blend) in accordance 
with the attached specifications terms and conditions. Prospective bidders are advised 
to read this information over carefully prior to submitting a bid. 
 
All proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope, plainly marked: Town of 
Belgrade “Fuel Bids” Attn: Town Manager / Anthony Wilson, 990 Augusta Road, 
Belgrade, ME 04917. 
 
All bids must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. (noon) on Thursday, June 3, 2021. 
The Belgrade Selectboard will review all proposals at its meeting on June 15, 2021, 
starting at 6:30 p.m. The Selectboard reserves the right to reject any and all bids with 
the best interest of the Town in mind. All proposals received will be considered 
confidential and not available for public review until after a supplier has been selected. 
 
Suppliers may submit any supporting information that will be beneficial in evaluating 
supplier and supplier proposals. This solicitation does not obligate parties to negotiate a 
contract with any supplier. The Town will not be responsible to pay for any fuel not used 
under this agreement. (Up to 7,500 gallons # 2 fuel, 3,500 propane & up to 600 gallons 
off-road diesel fuel) The agreement will run from June 15, 2021, to June 15, 2022. 
 
LATE PROPOSALS/BIDS: Any bids received after specified date and time will not be 
considered, nor will late bids be opened. 
 
Any questions please contact the Town Office at (207) 495-2258 and ask for Town 
Manager Anthony Wilson or call (207) 215-1021 for Facility Maintenance Director Chris 
Dutill. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICE:  

The SUPPLIER shall furnish a list of all labor and equipment to the OWNER to safely 
deliver # 2 fuel, LP fuel, and diesel fuel to the Town of Belgrade. 

AVAILABILITY: 

The SUPPLIER must deliver # 2 fuels and LP fuel on an automatic schedule and diesel 
fuel deliveries will be ordered by phone on an as needed basis.  

CONTRACTORS OBLIGATIONS: 



The SUPPLIER will furnish all vehicles, materials, personnel, tools, equipment and 
tanks (if needed) except as otherwise specified herein and does everything necessary 
and proper to satisfactorily perform the services as outlined. 

The SUPPLIER SHALL be familiar will all federal, state and local statutes, laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances and orders that may in any way affect the services. 

Any increase in SUPPLIER’S costs during the term of this proposed Agreement shall be 
the sole responsibility of the SUPPLIER. 

The SUPPLIER shall provide OWNER with proof of PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE in 
the amount of not less than Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000) or such other 
amounts as is established by the Maine Tort Claims Act (14 M.R.S.A. section 8101) as 
amended from time to time, combined single limit, to protect the SUPPLIER, as well as 
any subcontractor performing work as covered by this Agreement, and the OWNER 
from claims and damages that may arise from operations under this Agreement. The 
SUPPLIER must list the Town of Belgrade as an additional insured.   

The SUPPLIER shall provide OWNER with proof of Worker’s Compensation Insurance 
in the amount required by Maine law if necessary. 

PAYMENT(s) FOR SERVICE: 

All payments shall be done by a warrant signed by the Selectboard. Warrants are 
processed every first and third Tuesday of the month, and all payment requests are to 
be directed to Treasurer Nicholas Poole. 

Owner will provide gate key to SUPPLIER for the Transfer Station facility. 

The Town of Belgrade owns all of its tanks. 

AMOUNTS REQUIRED: 

  # 2 HEATING FUEL  = 7,500 GALLONS 

     PROPANE    = 3,500 GALLONS 

     DIESEL     =   600 GALLONS 

DROP-OFF LOCATIONS 

Commodity Type:    #2 Fuels: (7,500 gallons) 
Location & Size: 
 

Belgrade Lakes Fire Station - 1 Augusta Road – one 275-gallon tank 
 

Belgrade Depot Fire Station - 214 Depot Road – one 275-gallon tank 
 

Belgrade Transfer Station - 41 Transfer Station Road – one 275-gallon tank*  



 
North Belgrade Fire Station - 449 Smithfield Road – one 275-gallon tank 

 
North Belgrade Community Center - 508 Smithfield Road – one 275-gallon  

 
Belgrade Center for All Seasons – 1 Center Drive – two 330-gallon tanks 

 
Town of Belgrade – Rental – 8 Dalton Lane – one 275-gallon tank 

Town of Belgrade – Rental – 10 Dalton Lane – one 275-gallon tank   

 
Commodity Type: Off-Road Diesel (ONE DROP UP TO 600 gallons) 
Location & Size: 

Belgrade Transfer Station – 41 Transfer Station Road – one 200-gallon tank 

Facility Maintenance Garage – 60 Oakland Road - one 50-gallon tank 

* This is a waste oil heating unit which can use either # 2 fuel or diesel fuel. Fill only when 
requested. All of the rest of the tanks are on auto fill. 

 
Commodity Type: Propane (3,500 gallons) 
Location & Size: 

Belgrade New Town Office – 990 Augusta Road - one 1000-gallon tank  
 

Belgrade Lakes Fire Station – 1 Main Street – one 500-gallon tank  
 

Belgrade Center for All Seasons – 1 Center Drive – one 120-gallon tank and one 
500-gallon tank  

 
Facility Maintenance Garage – 60 Oakland Road - one 300-gallon tank 

Transfer Station – 41 Transfer Station Road - two 300-gallon tanks 
 

Town of Belgrade – Rental - 8 Dalton – one 300-gallon tank 
  

Town of Belgrade – Rental - 10 Dalton – one 300-gallon tank 
 
Facility Maintenance Director Chris Dutill (207) 215-1021, will show CONTRACTOR 
locations of all tanks and answer any questions dealing with deliveries.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BIDDER INFORMATION 
 

 
Bidder: _____________________________  _______________________________ 
                          Company Name         Contact Person 
 

_____________________________        ______________________________                 
Street Address or P.O. Box     Telephone Number & cell number 

 
     _______________________________________________________________              

       City, State and Zip    
 

_________________________________________________________________ 
Bidder Tax I.D. # (Employer or Soc. Sec #) 

 
          
________________________________________________________________ 

             24 hr. Dispatch Phone Number(s)        /       e-mail address 
 
 
We will sell & deliver up to 7500 gallons of # 2 fuel for $ ___________ a gallon running 
from June 1, 2021 to June 1, 2022 
 
 We will sell and deliver up to 3500 gallons of L. P. fuel for $ _________ a gallon 
running from June 1, 2021 to June 1, 2022 
 
We will deliver up to 600 gallons of diesel fuel on an as needed bases to the transfer 
station for a cost of $ __________ per gallon.  
 
Please list any options or changes from our specification you feel would benefit 

theTown:______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________ 



 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Electric and generators maintenance/repairs RFP 

We received one response – from Generators of Maine – to the attached 

Request for Proposals for the repair and maintenance of the Town’s electrical 

systems and propane generators. The RFP was sent to four vendors and posted 

online. The Town is extremely satisfied with the level of service Generators of 

Maine has provided.  





























Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Town Manager’s report 

 
I will be on vacation next week. I realize the timing is not ideal after having just 
taken time off to spend with my daughter on her way to the National Theatre 
Institute in Connecticut. But my wife and I reserved (and paid) for a camp rental 
last summer for this coming week. I specifically booked that week because June 
has five Tuesdays this year, so it wouldn’t interfere with Selectboard meetings. I 
will be responding to emails in the early morning and will be otherwise available 
by phone.  


	Agenda June 15, 2021
	June 8 2021 Selectboard minutes
	rec job descriptions
	recreation descriptions memo
	custodian job description
	camp counselor job description

	plowing materials
	plowing rfp memo
	snow plowing contract 2021 - 24

	tax commitment memo
	state assessment
	vets memorial memo
	burial materials
	burial spaces memo
	cemetery lot letter
	greig burial letter

	fuel bid materials
	fuel rfp memo
	fuel bids
	Fuel  Off Road Diesel-2021-RFP

	electric repairs materials
	electric rfp memo
	generators of maine bid

	warrant
	town manager's report

